
1 

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 

Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 
Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 

Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 
Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 

Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 
Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 

John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

AGENDA 

PHONE: 541-2249 
FAX: 541-2248 

e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 
www.hopewellva.gov 

rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: April 10, 2018 MUNICIPAL BUILDING Closed Meeting:  6:30 p.m. 

Regular Meeting: 7:30 p.m. 

OPEN MEETING 

6:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration of 

prospective candidates for employment (city attorney);  (2) discussion of 

specific appointees of city council (HRHA, CVWMA); (3) discussion of 

the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, where discussion 

in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or 

negotiating strategy of city council;  (4) consultation with legal counsel 

and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual or 

probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting 

would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of city 

council (CSA); and (5) consultation with legal counsel employed or 

retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal 

matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in 

accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [two items], (3), (7), 

and (8), respectively. 

Roll Call 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public 

business matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in 

the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

Roll Call 

MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda 

Roll Call 

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


2 

REGULAR MEETING 

7:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

Prayer by Herbert Bragg, Director of Intergovernmental & Public Affairs, followed by the 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Holloway. 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be 

approved or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 

C-1 Minutes:  

C-2 Pending List:  

C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions: 

C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report: 

C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:  Amend Chapter 2, Article 1, Sec. 2-10, 

paragraph (c) (Law Library Committee) of the Hopewell City Code 

C-6 Routine Grant Approval: 

C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: April 24, 2018 – Public Hearing on Comprehensive 

Plan; Public Hearing on Eminent Domain; Public Hearing on Chesapeake Bay Site Plan 

C-8 Information for Council Review: 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: American Legion presentation honoring 

heroes; Gore presentation on NLC Legislative Meeting 

C-10 Additional Announcements: Reminder of Spring Clean Up 

Public Hearings 

CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, 

if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person 

shall be permitted to address Council a second time until all others have been heard, and no one 

may speak more than twice on any subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to 

Council as a body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no 

discussion without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, 

abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers may be 

barred by the mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a 

majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406) 

None  

Communications from Citizens 

CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is 

part of the Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council 

shall approach the microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, 

and limit comments to three minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for 

consideration on the regular agenda of the meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council 

as a body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion 

without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or 

slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers, may be barred by the 

mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of 

Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 



 

3 

 

 

 

Regular Business 

Reports of City Manager: 

 

R-1 Confirmation of Declaration of Emergency 

 

 ISSUE:  On March 30, 2018 John M. Altman Jr., City Manager of the City of Hopewell, 

declared a local emergency due to the loss of water pressure in the Hopewell drinking 

water system. Virginia Code § 44-146.21 requires that the governing body of a political 

subdivision declaring a local emergency, confirm said declaration at its next regularly 

scheduled meeting. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends that Council confirm the declaration of 

local emergency as declared by the City Manager on March 30, 2018. 

 

MOTION:            
 

              

  Roll Call 

 

R-2 Request for Appropriation of Funds 

 

ISSUE:  The Information Technology Department is currently experiencing a budgetary  

shortfall caused by unforeseen expenses related to the City network repair and 

maintenance. IT currently has over $100,000 in salary savings, and is asking Council to 

re-appropriate $60,647.69 of that, to meet the shortfall and to carry IT through the end of 

FY18. 

 

 RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends that Council approve the re-

appropriation of $60,647.69 from IT’s salary savings to the IT General Fund. 

 

MOTION:            
 

              

  Roll Call 

 

  



 

4 

 

 

Reports of the City Attorney:   

 

Reports of the City Clerk:  
 

Reports of City Council: 

 

 Committees  
 

 Individual Councilors   
 

 Gore - Request City Council to consider creating an ad-hoc committee to explore  

the City participating in the Certified Work Ready Community (CWRC) 

by American College Testing (ACT) program and Request the City 

Council to consider enrolling in the U.S. Communities Government 

Purchasing Alliance Program with the National League of Cities 

(See CAF) 

 

 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 

 

Other Council Communications 

 

Adjournment  



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 

ORDINANCES 

ON SECOND 

& FINAL 

READING 

 
 



ORIGINAL VERSION 
 
 
 
Sec. 2-10. - Law library established; court cost assessment; library committee. 
 

(a) Library established. Under the provisions of Code of Virginia (1950), § 42.1-70, as amended, there is hereby 
established a law library in room 261 of the Courts Facility Building, 100 East Broadway, which law library 
shall be open for the use of the public. 

 
(b) Assessment of court costs. To provide for the acquisition of law books and law periodicals, and to provide 

for the maintenance of such library, beginning July 1, 2009, there is hereby assessed a sum of four dollars 
($4.00) as part of the costs incident to each civil action filed in the district court and the circuit court of the 
City of Hopewell. The assessment provided for herein shall be in addition to all other costs prescribed by 
law, but shall not apply to any action in which the Commonwealth of Virginia or any political subdivision 
thereof or the federal government is a party and in which the costs are assessed against the  
Commonwealth, political subdivision thereof, or federal government. The assessment shall be collected by 
the clerk of the court in which the action is filed, and remitted to the treasurer of the city, to be held by 
such treasurer subject to disbursements by the law library committee, hereinafter created. 

 
(c) Law library committee. A committee to be called the law library committee is hereby created to be 

composed of a member of council appointed by the mayor, the city attorney, the commonwealth attorney, 
the judge in residence of the general district court, and a member appointed by the Hopewell Bar 
Association, to oversee the operation of said library and to report to city council quarterly during the first 
year and annually by June 30 of each year thereafter. 

 
An attested copy of this section shall be sent to the clerks of the Hopewell District and Circuit Courts by the 

clerk of the city. 
 
(Ord. No. 83-20, 12-13-83; Ord. No. 92-22, 6-23-92; Ord. No. 95-33, 9-26-95; Ord. No. 95-38, 11-15- 
95; Ord. No. 2009-07, 6-9-09) 
 
Editor's note— Ord. No. 83-20, adopted Dec. 13, 1983, did not specify manner of codification; hence, inclusion 
herein as § 2-10 has been at the discretion of the editor. 



REDLINED VERSION 

 
Ordinance No. 2018-       

 
An Ordinance amending  

Chapter 2, Article I, Sec. 2-10, paragraph (c) of the City of Hopewell Code of Ordinances 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL, that Chapter 2, 
Article I, Sec. 2-10, paragraph (c) of the City of Hopewell Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended, and re-enacted as follows: 
 
Sec. 2-10. - Law library established; court cost assessment; library committee. 
 

(a) Library established. Under the provisions of Code of Virginia (1950), § 42.1-70, as 
amended, there is hereby established a law library in room 261 of the Courts Facility 
Building, 100 East Broadway, which law library shall be open for the use of the public. 

 
(b) Assessment of court costs. To provide for the acquisition of law books and law 

periodicals, and to provide for the maintenance of such library, beginning July 1, 2009, 
there is hereby assessed a sum of four dollars ($4.00) as part of the costs incident to 
each civil action filed in the district court and the circuit court of the City of Hopewell. 
The assessment provided for herein shall be in addition to all other costs prescribed by 
law, but shall not apply to any action in which the Commonwealth of Virginia or any 
political subdivision thereof or the federal government is a party and in which the costs 
are assessed against the Commonwealth, political subdivision thereof, or federal 
government. The assessment shall be collected by the clerk of the court in which the 
action is filed, and remitted to the treasurer of the city, to be held by such treasurer 
subject to disbursements by the law library committee, hereinafter created. 

 
(c) Law library committee. A committee to be called the law library committee is hereby 

created to be composed of a member of council appointed by the mayor, the city 
attorney, the commonwealth’s attorney, the circuit court clerk, and a judge of the 
general district circuit court,, and a member appointed by the Hopewell Bar Association,  
to oversee the operation of the library and to report to city council quarterly during the 
first year and annually by June 30 of each year thereafter. 

 
This ordinance amendment shall become effective upon the date of its adoption by the City 
Council. 

 



CLEAN VERSION 

 
Ordinance No. 2018-       

 
An Ordinance amending  

Chapter 2, Article I, Sec. 2-10, paragraph (c) of the City of Hopewell Code of Ordinances 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL, that Chapter 2, 
Article I, Sec. 2-10, paragraph (c) of the City of Hopewell Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended, and re-enacted as follows: 
 
Sec. 2-10. - Law library established; court cost assessment; library committee. 
 

(a) Library established. Under the provisions of Code of Virginia (1950), § 42.1-70, as 
amended, there is hereby established a law library in room 261 of the Courts Facility 
Building, 100 East Broadway, which law library shall be open for the use of the public. 

 
(b) Assessment of court costs. To provide for the acquisition of law books and law 

periodicals, and to provide for the maintenance of such library, beginning July 1, 2009, 
there is hereby assessed a sum of four dollars ($4.00) as part of the costs incident to 
each civil action filed in the district court and the circuit court of the City of Hopewell. 
The assessment provided for herein shall be in addition to all other costs prescribed by 
law, but shall not apply to any action in which the Commonwealth of Virginia or any 
political subdivision thereof or the federal government is a party and in which the costs 
are assessed against the Commonwealth, political subdivision thereof, or federal 
government. The assessment shall be collected by the clerk of the court in which the 
action is filed, and remitted to the treasurer of the city, to be held by such treasurer 
subject to disbursements by the law library committee, hereinafter created. 

 
(c) Law library committee. A committee to be called the law library committee is hereby 

created to be composed of the city attorney, the commonwealth’s attorney, the circuit 
court clerk, and a judge of the circuit court, to oversee the operation of the library and 
to report to city council annually. 

 
This ordinance amendment shall become effective upon the date of its adoption by the City 
Council. 

 



PUBLIC HEARING 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

                  April 24, 2018

Comprehensive Plan

Eminent Domain

Chesapeake Bay Site Plan



 
PROCLAMATIONS 

§ 
RESOLUTIONS  

§ 
PRESENTATIONS 

 



Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore
National League of Cities (NLC)

Conference Update



The National League of Cities (NLC) is a federal advocacy 
organization that is dedicated to helping city leaders build better 
communities. Working in partnership with the 49 state municipal 
leagues, NLC serves as a resource to and an advocate for the more 

than 19,000 cities, villages and towns it represents.

NLC is governed by a board of directors that is comprised of four officers 
(president, first vice president, second vice president, and immediate past 

president), all past presidents still in local government service, eight state league 
directors, seven advocacy committee chairs, and forty at‐large members



2017
Annual Report

https://youtu.be/oH9veGlR9yQ



WAYS TO LEAD:
Officers & Board of Directors

Federal Advocacy Committees
• Community & Economic Development
• Energy, Environment & Natural Resources
• Finance, Administration & Intergovernmental Relations
• Human Development
• Information Technology & Communications
• Public Safety & Crime Prevention
• Transportation & Infrastructure Services 

Member Councils
• First‐Tier Suburbs Council
• Large Cities Council
• Military Communities Council
• Small Cities Council
• University Communities Council
• Council on Youth, Education and Families 

Constituency Groups
• Asian Pacific American Municipal Officials
• Hispanic Elected Officials
• Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender Local Officials
• National Black Caucus of Local Elected Officials
• Women in Municipal Government

Race, Equity and Leadership (REAL) Council

v



National League of Cities Board of Directors



National League of Cities 
Board of Directors

Schedule

The 2018 Congressional City Conference took place in 
Washington, D.C. March 11‐14, with pre‐conference 
NLC University Seminars taking place March 10‐11.

• Board Members always have business 
meetings the day before the conference 
officially begins. 



National League of Cities 
Board of Directors

Schedule

• Board Members schedules normally begin 
daily at 8:00 a.m. and end no earlier than 
5:00 p.m. on most conference days. 



National League of Cities 
Board of Directors

Schedule



Vice Mayor Gore’s 
National League of Cities Benefits

Monetary:
• 3 Conferences, lodging and travel paid in FULL 

by the National Black Caucus of Local Elected 
Officials 

• 1 Conference Discount Rate due to request to 
serve as a Conference Speaker. (Prior to Board of 
Director’s Appointment) 

Advocacy
• 2 Invitations to White House to meet with 

President Cabinet members about federal 
programs, funding, grants and federal budget.

• Advance knowledge & invitations to participate 
in new Pilot Programs or grant opportunities, 
and direct access to government officials and 
program  managers that oversee programs.









“Startup In a Day” imitative for to pledge to make it easier for every entrepreneur to start a business by 
building streamlined, business‐friendly, online tools.  No consensus from Council. 

‐25 cities received $50,000
‐1 city received‐ $250.000 “Dream Big”

Let’s Move! Cities, Towns and Counties is a comprehensive initiative dedicated to solving the problem of 
obesity within a generation, so that children born today will grow up healthier and able to pursue their 
dreams. 

‐Individually championed and endorsed by Council via a resolution. 
‐City received White House recognition for completing program.
‐Eligible to apply for multiple state and federal program grants

Let’s Move! All‐Stars is a program only offered to localities that have completed the Let’s Move Cities, 
Towns and Counties initiative. The U.S. Department of health provides technical assistance and support to 
localities to complete short‐term and long‐term goals related to the 8 program goals. 

‐Council supported via a resolution. 
‐Use of U.S. Dept. of Health Technical Assistance.
‐Eligible to apply for multiple state and federal program grants.

Call to action made by HUD Secretary Donovan, and amplified by leaders across HUD, VA, USICH, and by 
the National League of Cities, for cities to commitment to ending Veteran homelessness in their cities in 
2015. ‐Council supported and approved taking the pledge. 

‐City staff and volunteers provide operational support and statistics. 
‐Hopewell recognized by White House and federal programs for 
assiting Virginia to become the 1st state in the nation to “functionally” 
End Veteran Homelessness. 



NLC Community Video Showcase Video Program. CGI works directly with your community to produce a 
series of videos for your official government website to help promote tourism, educate and welcome new 
families and residents, and attract new businesses.

‐4 Free Video Tour; Online Server; Video Templates
‐3D Community Map

The Opioid Mapping Initiative creates a community of these early innovators to share their practice of 
workflows, and allows for the exchange of data‐tracking methods that are not currently being used 
uniformly across communities. Their collaboration will be documented and provided as a resource that 
other local governments can look to as they begin to use data as a tool to solve local problems.

Google partnered with American cities to expand local business footprints by providing free tools. Google 
provides business owners with free Google Analytics, 1‐Year website domain, PayPal/Credit Card merchant 
discounts, etc. 

‐Free promotional materials
‐Free workshops; online kits
‐Free company perks; free restock

Internet Essentials is a high‐speed internet adoption program for low‐income Americans in the country.
our goal is to connect the unconnected and provide them with the tools and training they need to connect 
to a world of knowledge and opportunity.



Agenda

Federal Action 
Agenda

NLC

Public Safety

The Economy

Infrastructure



Narcan Purchasing Discount‐ U.S. Communities  
Operation Prevention

FEND (Free Energy, End Drugs) Music Tour
ESRI‐ GIS Software App

Celebrating Lost Loved Ones





3

4

5 6

7

The City of Hopewell 
Is a member of:

Virginia Municipal League (VML)- State
National League of Cities (NLC)- Federal

1 2

3

4

5 6

7

VML’s Leadership Academy & NLC University. 

• Elected Officials, City Staff and other Government Officials 
retrieve training in various field of their choice during 
conference workshops from 7:00 a.m.-5:00 p.m. daily. 

• Provides Elected Officials the opportunity to receive training 
to fit their city’s need, interest and expertise.  Allows 
governing bodies to tap into multiple topic areas at once. To 
fully maximize the resources and training provided. 

• Participation magnifies Hopewell’s voice and direct/tangible 
opportunities with the  VML and NLC.

• Provides and opportunity for residents to be represented 
and served by Elected Officials that are educated on best 
practices, have knowledge on cutting-edge innovations, have 
direct access to key stakeholders, have the ability use free or 
low charge resources and have free advocacy on 
local/Hopewell issues.

• The decision to obtain continuing education is the individual 
choice of each Elected Official. He/She must have the desire 
to gain the tools to best serve his/her constituents. It is 
improper to limit growth and knowledge of other Elected 
Officials due to a personal belief regarding obtaining 
education and training. In order to be a subject-matter 
expert in a field, an individual must take training and/or 
education courses. Those graduates are not allowed to share 
their certificates/degrees by splitting the requirements 
between themselves and others. Elected Officials should not 
have their ability to be subject-matter experts or knowledge 
about laws, governing practices, policies and methods. They 
should also not be forced to have their ability to grow as an 
Elected Official be dependent or co-dependent on another. 







PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 

NONE



 COMMUNICATIONS 
     FROM CITIZENS 



REGULAR 
BUSINESS 



REPORTS 
OF THE 

CITY 
MANAGER 



 
R-1 

 
 



SUMMARY:
Y N  Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

R- 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply) 

Order of Business: 
Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business           
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Confirmation of the declaration of local emergency by the City 
Manager for the drinking water emergency beginning March 30th 2018. 

ISSUE:  On March 30th 2018 John M. Altman Jr., City Manager of the City of Hopewell, declared a 
local emergency due to the loss of water pressure in the Hopewell drinking water system. City 
departments and the Virginia American Water Company took necessary action to provide water to the 
citizens of Hopewell, and restore normal water service. Virginia Code §44-146.21 requires that the 
governing body of a political subdivision declaring a local emergency, confirm said declaration at its 
next regularly scheduled meeting.  

RECOMMENDATION:  City Administration recommends that City Council confirm the declaration 
of local emergency as declared by the City Manager on March 30th 2018. 

TIMING:   City Council is requested to act on this matter on April 10th 2018.  

BACKGROUND: Applicable Virginia Code Section: 
§ 44-146.21. Declaration of local emergency.
A. A local emergency may be declared by the local director of emergency management with the consent 
of the governing body of the political subdivision. In the event the governing body cannot convene due 
to the disaster or other exigent circumstances, the director, or in his absence, the deputy director, or in 
the absence of both the director and deputy director, any member of the governing body may declare the 
existence of a local emergency, subject to confirmation by the governing body at its next regularly 
scheduled meeting or at a special meeting within 45 days of the declaration, whichever occurs first. The 
governing body, when in its judgment all emergency actions have been taken, shall take appropriate 
action to end the declared emergency. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  Signed Declaration of Local Emergency 



SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 
      

  
       

  R- 
 

STAFF:          Donny Hunter, Fire Chief 
  Benjamin Ruppert, Coordinator of Emergency Services 
                 

  
 





 
R-2 

 
 



SUMMARY: 
Y N  Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply) 

Order of Business: 
   Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business          
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

   Set a Public Hearing     
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Appropriation of salary savings to Information Technology 
General Funds 

ISSUE:   The Information Technology (IT) Budget currently has insufficient funds to sustain itself 
through the end of the year. The shortfall is largely due to unanticipated repairs and having to replace 
CISCO networking core switches. There were also associated consulting and professional service costs. 

RECOMMENDATION:   Requesting appropriation of salary savings in the amount of $60,647.69 to 
meet but shortfall. 

BACKGROUND: In the summer of 2017, the City began experiencing network outages, and 
intermittent network connectivity. During September and October 2017, several consulting services and 
onsite professional services were contacted to help diagnose the problems. Recommendations from these 
consultations indicated that the core switches needed to be replaced to support the fiber lines into City 
Hall. In November 2017, a critical network outage prompted IT to purchase CISCO core switches to 
stabilize the network, costing $52,571.43.  This caused a budgetary shortfall for fiscal year 2017-2018. 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 

STAFF:   Dr. Concetta Manker, Director of Finance   



REPORTS OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

•COMMITTEES
• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST

•ANY OTHER COUNCILOR



SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 
      

  
       

  R- 
 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Request City Council Consider an Ad-Hoc Committee and 
Request Council to Consider Enrolling in the US Communities Government Purchasing Alliance Program 
with the National League of Cities. 
 
ISSUE:  The Governor will certify localities or regions that meet established benchmarks after the year-
long academy. In April 2014, the Commonwealth established its criteria consisting of the ACT Work 
Ready Communities Common Criteria and a threshold high school diploma or equivalent attainment rate 
of 70% or more of working adult population (ages 18-64). The Governor of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia will certify localities or regions that meet established benchmarks for these criteria. A local WRC 
leadership team should have representatives from local government, economic development, 
community/technical colleges, K-12 system, and business/industry. The initial goal would be to create a 
local workforce that leads to business retention, higher educational attainment and vocational 
opportunities. The CWRC program works in concern with the National Career Readiness Certificate 
(NCRC), and serves as a validating tool that a community has a skilled labor force for targeted industries. 
 
Request the City Council to consider enrolling in the U.S. Communities Government Purchasing Alliance 
Program with the National League of Cities. The U.S. Communities program provides local agencies in 
the U.S. with competitively bid public contracts for various products and services. Most local agencies 
are allowed to piggyback on a contract competitively bid by another public agency, thereby eliminating 
the need to re-bid. Through the buying power of large government purchasers in the U.S. Communities 
program, all local government agencies and nonprofit organizations receive access to excellent pricing 
and contract terms.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
TIMING:   City Council is requested to act on this matter on April 10th 2018.    
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

 



SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 
      

  
       

  R- 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: None  
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  None 

    
SUBMITTED BY:   Vice Mayor Gore 
   

  
 



U.S. Communities
The Leading National Government Purchasing Cooperative
Home > Government Purchasing

U.S. Communities is the leading national government cooperative purchasing 
program, providing procurement resources and solutions to local and state 
government agencies including:

• Cities
• Counties
• Towns
• States
• Special Districts
• Boroughs
• Villages
• Schools, Universities and Colleges

With U.S. Communities, agencies can utilize competitively solicited contracts to help 
save time and resources while still meeting state, local and federal purchasing 
requirements. All cooperative purchasing contracts from U.S. Communities have 
been competitively solicited by a lead public agency and meet our rigorous 
cooperative standards and supplier commitments. Each supplier commits to 
delivering their best overall government pricing so you can buy with confidence. 

The program delivers savings in time and dollars:

• No Cost to Participate: there is no cost or fee to register, no commitments 
and no minimum orders.

• Best Overall Supplier Government Pricing: by combining the cooperative
purchasing power of 90,000 public agencies, suppliers commit to provide their 
best overall government pricing.

• Quality brands: thousands of the best brands in a wide variety of categories, 
services and solutions.

• Integrity and Experience: U.S. Communities government purchasing 
cooperative is founded by 5 national sponsors and more than 70 state, city 
and regional organizations.

• Oversight by Public Purchasing Professionals: third party audits ensure
program pricing commitments are met and our Advisory Board provides 
ongoing program leadership and direction. 

View our full list of suppliers to start saving and then register to participate — it's 
quick, easy and completely free.

How to Get Started
1. Register with U.S. 

Communities

2. Request Contact from t
suppliers you would lik
purchase from. 
They will contact you to
up an account or conne
your existing account to
your U.S. Communities
registration.

3. Shop Online or Contact
Supplier to begin 
purchasing.

Save On
• Janitorial and Cleaning

Supplies
• Office and Education 

Furniture
• Copiers, Printers and 

Office Machines
• Equipment Rental
• Temporary Staffing
• Maintenance, Hardware 

and Paint Supplies
• Technology Solutions, 

Software and Equipment
• Electrical and Lighting
• Safety and Emergency 

Preparedness
• Roofing
• Telecommunications
• Uniforms or Branded 

Clothing
• Park, Playground and P.E. 

Equipment
• Auto Parts
• Science and Lab Supplies

Solutions

BY CATEGORY

Main Menu

JUMP TO:

Solicitations

About

News & Events

Resources

Contact Us

Shop

Education Purchasing

Government Purchasing

Nonprofit

Go Green Program

Innovation Exchange

BY SUPPLIER ( show all ->)

Facilities

Office & School

Specialty

Technology

PRODUCTS & SOLUTIONS CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

About News & Events Resources Contact Us

Page 1 of 2Government Purchasing | U.S. Communities

4/6/2018http://www.uscommunities.org/government-purchasing/



Getting Started

• Program Overview

• How It Works

• FAQs

Why Use U.S. Communities

• What Makes Us Different

• Webinars & Events

• Supplier Commitments

Discounts on Brands

• Products & Suppliers

• Online Marketplace

• Solicitations

Over 55,000 agencies trust U.S.

• Who Uses U.S. Communities?

• Cooperative Standards

• State Statutes

U.S. COMMUNITIES | NATIONAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM

CONTACT US BECOME A SUPPLIER ABOUT US LEGAL PRIVACY MICPA

© 2018  U.S. Communities | All Rights Reserved.

Page 2 of 2Government Purchasing | U.S. Communities

4/6/2018http://www.uscommunities.org/government-purchasing/



Contracts and Suppliers
Home

Appliances Appliances Automotive Carpet & Flooring

Carpet & Flooring Electrical Elevators & Escalators Energy Management & 
Consulting

Equipment Rental, Sales & 
Services

ESCO/Energy Savings 
Performance Contracting

ESCO/Energy Savings 
Performance Contracting

Facility Cleaning & Services

HVAC Industrial Janitorial Services Janitorial Supplies

LED Lighting Maintenance & Hardware Maintenance & Hardware Maintenance & Hardware

Mowers & Implements Online Marketplace Paint Roofing

Temporary Staffing & 
Workforce Solutions

Tractors & Implements Tractors & Implements Traffic & Parking Control

Uniform & Work Apparel Utility, Transportation & Golf 
Vehicles

Utility, Transportation & Golf 
Vehicles

Waste & Recycling Solutions

Below is a complete listing of U.S. Communities supplier partners by contract solution. Our suppliers have committed to 
providing program participants their best overall government pricing. This means you won't find out later that you could 
have gotten a better deal by going to bid or accessing a different contract vehicle held by that supplier.

Facilities
Solutions

BY CATEGORY

Main Menu

JUMP TO:

Solicitations

About

News & Events

Resources

Contact Us

Shop

Education Purchasing

Government Purchasing

Nonprofit

Go Green Program

Innovation Exchange

BY SUPPLIER ( show all ->)

Facilities

Office & School

Specialty

Technology

PRODUCTS & SOLUTIONS CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

About News & Events Resources Contact Us

Page 1 of 4Suppliers | U.S. Communities

4/6/2018http://www.uscommunities.org/suppliers/



Amazon Web Services Document & Print Services Google Solutions Office Machines

Online Marketplace Oracle Solutions Technology Solutions Technology Solutions

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Technology Solutions

Available through contract with 
Insight Public Sector

Telecommunications Temporary Staffing

Workforce Management 
Solutions

Technology

Office & School

Page 2 of 4Suppliers | U.S. Communities

4/6/2018http://www.uscommunities.org/suppliers/



Athletic & P.E. Equipment Education Furniture Energy Management & 
Consulting

Facility Cleaning & Services

Higher Ed Food Service & 
Products

Janitorial Services Janitorial Supplies K-12 Food Service & Products

Multifunctional Printers and 
Copiers

Office Furniture Office Furniture Office Furniture

Online Marketplace Playground Solutions Playground Solutions Science & Lab Supplies

Temporary Staffing Traffic & Parking Control Uniform & Work Apparel Workforce Management 
Solutions

Auto Parts Data & Analytics Energy Management & 
Consulting

ESCO/Energy Savings 
Performance Contracting

ESCO/Energy Savings 
Performance Contracting

Fraud & Identity Government Food Service & 
Products

Homeland Security & Public 
Safety

Interpreter & Translation 
Services

Offender Monitoring 
Solutions

Online Marketplace Park & Playground 
Equipment

Park & Playground 
Equipment

Pharmaceutical & 
Medical/Surgical Solutions

Public Sector Consulting Specialty Vehicles

Temporary Staffing Tractors & Implements Tractors & Implements Traffic & Parking Control

Specialty

Page 3 of 4Suppliers | U.S. Communities

4/6/2018http://www.uscommunities.org/suppliers/



Getting Started

• Program Overview

• How It Works

• FAQs

Why Use U.S. Communities

• What Makes Us Different

• Webinars & Events

• Supplier Commitments

Discounts on Brands

• Products & Suppliers

• Online Marketplace

• Solicitations

Over 55,000 agencies trust U.S.

• Who Uses U.S. Communities?

• Cooperative Standards

• State Statutes

U.S. COMMUNITIES | NATIONAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM

CONTACT US BECOME A SUPPLIER ABOUT US LEGAL PRIVACY MICPA

© 2018  U.S. Communities | All Rights Reserved.

Uniform & Work Apparel Utility, Transportation & Golf 
Vehicles

Utility, Transportation & Golf 
Vehicles

Page 4 of 4Suppliers | U.S. Communities

4/6/2018http://www.uscommunities.org/suppliers/



Getting Started

• Program Overview

• How It Works

• FAQs

Why Use U.S. Communities

• What Makes Us Different

• Webinars & Events

• Supplier Commitments

Discounts on Brands

• Products & Suppliers

• Online Marketplace

• Solicitations

Over 55,000 agencies trust U.S.

• Who Uses U.S. Communities?

• Cooperative Standards

• State Statutes

U.S. COMMUNITIES | NATIONAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM

CONTACT US BECOME A SUPPLIER ABOUT US LEGAL PRIVACY MICPA

© 2018  U.S. Communities | All Rights Reserved.

Home > New User Registration Form

1. Personal Information 2. Agency Information

Registration is fast, easy and free!
Get started saving time and money. There are no fees, commitments or order minimums when you 
register with U.S. Communities. However, you must represent a public agency, educational 
institution or nonprofit organization.

3. On behalf of the public agency identified (the 'Participating Public Agency'), I hereby acknowledge that:

 I agree to the Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement Terms and 
Conditions 

Are you a Supplier 
Employee?
Go to Supplier Registration.

First Name *

Last Name *

Title *

Email *

Email (Again) *

Phone * Ext.

How did you hear about us? *



Agency Name *

Federal EIN / TIN (Optional)

Address *

Address 2 (Optional)

City *

State *


ZIP Code *

Organization Type *



Agency Type *



Functional Area *



PRODUCTS & SOLUTIONS CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

About News & Events Resources Contact Us

Page 1 of 1New User Registration Form | U.S. Communities

4/6/2018http://www.uscommunities.org/forms/registration/forms/new-user-registration-form/




